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September 20, 2023 

TO:           All Bidders under:  

RFQ 23-3003811 Feasibility Study for Implementing 4 Day Workweek 

FROM:     Department of Purchasing and Contracting, DeKalb County, Georgia  

ADDENDUM NO. 2  

Request for Quotation (RFQ) 23-3003811 Feasibility Study for Implementing 4 Day Workweek is 
hereby amended as follows: 

1. The Request for Quotes due date has been extended to Wednesday, September 27,
2023 at 3:00 p.m. EST.

2. Questions have been received and the responses are indicated on pages 2-7 of this
addendum.

3. It is the responsibility of each bidder to ensure that they are aware of all addenda
issued under this RFQ. Please sign and return this addendum. You may email Tina
L. Richardson at tlrichardson@dekalbcountyga.gov before the bids are due to
confirm the number of addenda issued.

4. All other conditions remain in full force and effect.

______________________________________ 
Tina L. Richardson 
Procurement Technician 
Department of Purchasing and Contracting  

mailto:tlrichardson@dekalbcountyga.gov
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Questions and Answers: 
 

1. Question: Is there an already determined/allocated budget for this project? If so, 
what is the budget/budget range? 

 Answer: The County estimates that the cost of the completed project will be 
between $25,000.00 and $50,000.00. Quotes that exceed $50,000.00 will 
not be considered. 
 

2. Question: Will there be an opportunity to survey and selectively interview staff 
and department heads? 

 Answer: Yes, the selected vendor will have the opportunity to survey selected staff 
and department heads. 
 

3. Question: Will there be access to current work schedules by department and 
exact number of employees by department? 

 Answer: Yes, work schedules and the number of employees per department will be 
provided.   
 

4. Question: Once underway, who will be the point of contact for this project? 
 Answer: The point of contact will be the HR Policy Division and the Policy 

Manager.  
 
The backup contacts are the HR Director and the Deputy Director. 
 

5. Question: What is the preferred method of communication? 

 Answer: The preferred method of communication will be email.  The preferred 
method for meetings will be Microsoft Teams or Zoom. 
 

6. Question: What is the decision-making process for this project? 

 Answer: The driving forces for the decision will be the review and analysis of the 
study by HR and CEO/COO, combined with the determination of 
budgetary, staff, and community impact.  
 

7. Question: Who is the decision-maker for this project? 

 Answer: CEO/COO. 
 

8. Question: Is there a methodology by which vendor submission will be evaluated 
and scored? What are the selection criteria for this project? What 
criteria will be used to evaluate the proposals?  

 Answer: Quotes will be evaluated on meeting the requirements of the RFQ and the 
thoroughness of the information and documentation submitted. The 
County intends to award to the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder; 
however, the County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive 
informalities and to re-advertise.  
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9. Question: Please provide an example of or describe the electronic format 
prescribed by the county? Are reports, charts and graphs deliverable 
in Excel, PowerPoint, Word Document or is PDF the only acceptable 
format? 

 Answer: Human Resources can work with any of the formats mentioned. 
 

10. Question: What constitutes the end of day deadlines for the first and final draft 
reports? 

 Answer: The end of day for the first draft is the 60th calendar day after contract 
start/vendor engagement and the100th calendar day for final draft report. 
Flexibility may be considered based on project needs.  
 

11. Question: What trigger establishes the start of vendor engagement? 
 Answer: Issuance of notice to proceed by Purchasing & Contracting Department. 

 
12. Question: Are there confidentiality requirements? 

 Answer: The selected vendor should only share results of the study with DeKalb 
County designated points of contact.  
 

13. Question: Have similar projects been completed in the past? 

 Answer: Not to our knowledge. 
 

14. Question: What is the history of this project? Has it been put out as a Request 
For Proposal (RFP) before? If so, why was the decision made to 
reissue the RFP? 

 Answer: This is the initial solicitation for this project. 
 

15. Question: Is there a preferred vendor list for this project? If so, who are the 
vendors on that list? 

 Answer: No, there is no preferred vendor list.  
 

16. Question: What is the preferred format for submissions? 
 Answer: A preferred format is not specified. However, each bidder must complete 

and return the quote form, reference form, contractor affidavit, and a copy 
of bidder’s valid business license. All submissions must be provided to 
DeKalb County by email to the attention of Tina L. Richardson at 
tlrichardson@dekalbcountyga.gov. 
 

17. Question: Can the county provide additional insight on the issues the County is 
seeking to address through new/changed alternative work 
arrangements? e.g., address issues with employee attraction or 
retention, improve operating hours, etc. 

 Answer: The county is interested in increasing employee recruitment and retention, 
improved work-life balance, reduction of carbon environmental footprint 

mailto:tlrichardson@dekalbcountyga.gov
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(energy consumption), potential benefits on employee physical and mental 
health of a four-day workweek and/or staggered work schedules, and more 
efficient and effective provision of services to the citizens of DeKalb 
County. 
 

18. Question: Can you provide a listing of the 31 departments included in the scope 
of the study? Can you provide a rough breakdown/ overview of the 
31+ departments? (e.g., # of employees per department; functional 
areas within each department; an overarching organization chart?) 

 Answer: See page 8 of this addendum for a list of departments and approximate # 
of employees under the purview of the CEO.  
 
Departmental functional information is available on the Dekalb County 
GA website: https://www.dekalbcountyga.gov/  
 

19. Question: Can you provide information related to the number of jobs that would 
be included in the scope of the effort? 

 Answer: Yes, the focus of information of this study is targeted toward employees 
under the purview of the CEO, which is approximately 600 job 
classifications and 4,000 employees.  
 

20. Question: How many directors should be engaged in the process to understand 
operational requirements for each department, related to work 
schedules and locations? Is it one director for each department, or are 
there multiple directors within each department? 

 Answer: In consultation with internal stakeholders and the selected vendor, HR will 
determine which directors should be engaged. Each department has a 
director, with some also having one or more deputies.  
 

21. Question: Are there any other specific stakeholders who will need to be engaged 
throughout the process outside of department directors and 
employees? E.g., County Executives, Board of Commissioners, 
Human Resources, broader community, etc. 

 Answer: Yes, the CEO, COO, and HR Management will need to be engaged 
throughout the process. The selected vendor may also present to the Board 
of Commissioners (BOC) at certain milestones. 
 

22. Question: Does DeKalb County have a preference for how employees and 
Directors will be engaged in the process? For example, in person 
meetings, phone or video/calls, or online surveys or focus groups. 

 Answer: No, the County is open to what works best with coordination through HR. 
   
23. Question: Can you explain what is meant by energy consumption, in the 

requirement to include the following in the report “The physical and 
mental health benefit, along with impact on energy consumption.” 

https://www.dekalbcountyga.gov/
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 Answer: The main focus remains as the feasibility of a four-day workweek and 
staggered work schedules. General observations may be provided 
regarding the impact of work schedule recommendations on energy 
consumption (i.e., carbon footprint) and benefit(s) on the physical and 
mental health of county employees. 
 

24. Question: Will the inventory of current working schedules currently being 
conducted by HR be completed and provided in full prior to the start 
of the study? 

 Answer: Yes. 
 

25. Question: Are the following alternative work arrangements outlined in the RFQ 
a comprehensive list of the scope that DeKalb County would like 
included: 4-day workweeks, staggered work schedules, remote and 
hybrid work? 

 Answer: Yes, however, the county is open to others based on findings once the study 
is underway. 
 

26. Question: Are there any legal or regulatory requirements governing work 
schedules/hours for any of the jobs included in the study? If so, will 
legal parameters be provided by the County? 

 Answer: The County is subject to the Federal Fair Labor Standard Act, Georgia 
FLSA or equivalent, and DeKalb County Municipal Code, Chapter 20. 
 

27. Question: Are there any previous studies or data available that can be used as a 
reference throughout the study? For example, employee surveys or 
feedback, operational performance related to current working 
arrangements, prior assessments of feasibility for certain types of 
work arrangements, etc. 

 Answer: The County has data on the various traditional and hybrid schedules in-
place that may be shared with selected vendor. 
 

28. Question: How will the study findings be communicated and presented to Dekalb 
County commissioners/decision makers? 

 Answer: The selected vendor will be required to present findings to Human 
Resources, CEO/COO, and the Board of Commissioners at different times.  
 

29. Question: Has the county collected any employee data (employee engagement 
survey, employee pulse surveys) that shed light on the preferences of 
employees in various departments regarding alternative work 
schedules or other aspects of flexible working?  If so, can this be 
shared in summary forms with the potential service providers? 

 Answer: The County has data on the various traditional and hybrid schedules in-
place that may be shared with selected vendor.  
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30. Question: There are several dimensions to flexible working – When, where, how, 
who, and what. When relates to when one works, such as the 4-day 
workweek.  Where relates to onsite, remote and hybrid. We 
understand that both flexible working considerations are in scope for 
consideration as part of this assignment.  Does the county desire to 
explore flexible working options in terms of how (e.g., job sharing), 
who (full-time, part-time, contractor, gig), and what (increased use of 
tools like AI to augment work and create new pathways to serving 
those in the community)? 

 Answer: The primary focus of this study is a 4-day workweek, staggered work 
schedules, remote and hybrid work. However, other suggestions may be 
considered.  
 

31. Question: The shift to a 4-day workweek would almost certainly involve 
significant change management. In addition to assessing the feasibility 
of 4-day and remote/hybrid schedules, does the county expect the 
successful vendor to also assess factors like readiness to change and a 
change narrative (why change, why change now, why must I change)? 

 Answer: Yes, this is a component of the feasibility to consider changing. 
 

32. Question: Will the survey HR is currently undertaking to understand each 
department’s use of different work schedules be completed and 
available for the contractor to reference by the time this study is 
expected to commence? 

 Answer: Yes. 
 

33. Question: As part of the service delivery and cost impact, does the county expect 
the vendor to perform a real estate review to assess building 
occupancy and utilization and infrastructure impacts (e.g., parking)? 

 Answer: The impact on real estate as a result of the recommendations will be 
reviewed separately from this engagement. 
 

34. Question: Can the county verify that the lump sum cost should also include 
expected travel costs to meet with Dekalb County leaders and staff and 
to visit facilities? 

 Answer: Yes. 
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT  

 
 

Date: ______________________________  
 
The above Addendum #2 is hereby acknowledged:  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

(NAME OF BIDDER) 
 
________________________________________     ___________________________________  

(Signature)                                                                (Title)  
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